
 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., December 11, 2025  

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Wednesday, December 03, 2025 
 2nd Printing – Tuesday, December 09, 2025 
 
III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – November 26, 2025    

 

                                                                                                                  PAGE (S)                                                        

IV.     NEW BUSINESS  

1. Intent of Award ……………….……………………………………………………………         1 - 3 
IFB GHURA-26-001; Renovation of 107 JT Tasipic Court, Yona 

2. Intent of Award ……………….……………………………………………………………         4 - 6 
IFB GHURA-26-003; Rehabilitation of 314B Unit Duplex,  
Chalan Macajna, Agana Heights 

3. Resolution No. FY2026-005 ……………….…………………………………………         
Resolution Approving the FY2026 Annual PHA Plan for Public  
Housing, Significant Amendment #1 

4. Resolution No. FY2026-006 ……………….…………………………………………         7 - 8 
Resolution to Approve and Adopt the Revised Public Housing 
2025 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP) Adding 
a Preference for Emergency Housing Voucher (EHV) Participants 

5. Resolution No. FY2026-020(A) …………………………………………………….        9 - 10 
Resolution Amending the Guam Community Development Block  
Grant-Disaster Recovery Procurement Policy Adopting Federal  
Compliance Standards 

6. Resolution No. FY2026-007 ………………………………………………………… 
Resolution Approving Up to (68) New Temporary Full-Time 
Equivalents to Provide Ancillary Support for the Community  
Development Block Grant-Disaster Recovery 

7. Resolution No. FY2026-008 …………………………………………………………       11 - 12 
Resolution Declaring a Stand-Alone Low-Income Housing Tax  
Credit (LIHTC) Policy Requirement 

8. 2025 LIHTC QAP / Application Cycle, Award ……………………………….       13 - 16 
 
 
 
 



 

 

V. OLD BUSINESS 

Summary of Executive Director, Board Evaluation for CY2025 …………………….. 

 

VI. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

Project Updates 

 

VII. GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Tuesday, January 13, 2026 

 @ 12:00 p.m.   

 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 











 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2025                                                    Page 1 of 8 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., November 26, 2025 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the Bylaws of the Authority, the Board of 
Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board meeting was called to order at 12:05 P.M., Tuesday, 
November 26, 2025, at the GHURA Sinajana Main Office, 1st floor Conference room. Acting 
Chairman Sanchez indicated that 6 of 6 members of the Board of Commissioners were present, 
representing a quorum and that the meeting would proceed as scheduled. 

 
Viewed 
virtually via 

ZOOM: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84485550661?pwd=a39Z4rySbAclgkjlaIo4JADYUGahnz.1 
YOUTUBE: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag 

BOC 
Commissioners 
Attendance 
 

Dr. John Rivera, Chairman                                        Virtual             In-Person                        
Nate Sanchez, Vice Chairman                                  Virtual             In-Person         
Anisia Delia, Commissioner                                      Virtual              In-Person           
Emilia Rice, Commissioner                                       Virtual             In-Person              
Victor Torres, Commissioner                                   Virtual             In-Person             
Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner                     Virtual             In-Person    
 
*Request to attend meeting virtually was submitted via email and acknowledged by Chairman Rivera. 

GHURA 
Management/ 
Staff  

Elizabeth F. Napoli, Executive Director         Julie Lujan, MIS Administrator     Carlo Ongklungel  
Fernando B. Esteves, Deputy Director          Sonny Perez, AE Manager             Thalia Pablo  
Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant                    Frances Danieli, Controller           Joyce Aguon  
Narcissa Ada, AMP1 Manager                         Katherine Taitano, RP&E Chief Planner                            
Gina Cura, AMP2 Manager                               Dr. Kimberly Bersamin, HR Administrator                     
Patrick Bamba, AMP3 Manager                      Antonio Camacho, Housing Procurement Admin.                                
Philomena San Nicolas, AMP4 Manager       Pearly Mendiola, GT Manager                        
Jolyn Terlaje, CD Manager                               Nicole Alejandro, Section 8 Administrator                                                                
Miguel Fernandez, AE                                       Michael Ricuyal, AE                     Ervin Santiago     
Maria Cherry Canete, AE                                  Patrick Luces                                Andrew Manglona   
Sherene Mantanona                   
 

Legal Counsel Eliseo M. Florig Jr., Legal Counsel for GHURA       Brittany Quinata  
 

Public None 
 
 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

              1st Printing – Tuesday, October 14, 2025 

   2nd Printing – Sunday, October 19, 2025 
   ACKNOWLEDGED BY CHAIRMAN RIVERA  

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84485550661?pwd=a39Z4rySbAclgkjlaIo4JADYUGahnz.1


 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2025                                                    Page 2 of 8 
 

 

III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES: [577/25] Vice Chairman Sanchez 

moved to approve the board meeting minutes of October 21, 2025, subject to 

corrections. Commissioner Corpus seconded the motion. There were no objections. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

IV. NEW BUSINESS: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. Resolution No. 
FY2026-002; 
Resolution Approving 
the Section Eight 
Management 
Assessment Program 
(SEMAP) Certification 
(Form HUD-52648) for 
Fiscal Year Ending 
2025 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[578/25] Executive Director Napoli presented 

the memorandum prepared by Mrs. Nicole 

Alejandro, Section 8 Administrator. She 

highlighted: 

• SEMAP is an annual self-assessment 

required by HUD under 24 CFR 985 for 

FYE2025 

• Guam's program includes 15 indicators, 

though Indicators 7 and 15 do not 

apply to Guam. 

• Quarterly internal quality control 

reviews have helped maintain 

compliance. 

• HUD system reporting (PIH Information 

Center/IPC System) validated Indicators 

9 through 15 through GHURA’s 

monthly submission of HUD 50058 

form 

• Maximum possible points: 140 

• GU scored above 95 percent on all 

indicators, projecting a perfect score of 

140. 

[579/25] Executive Director Napoli read 

Resolution No. FY2026-002; Resolution 

Approving the Section Eight Management 

Assessment Program (SEMAP) Certification 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2025                                                    Page 3 of 8 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Form HUD-52648) for Fiscal Year Ending 2025 

on pages 1-12 in the GHURA Board of 

Commissioners (BoC) November 26, 2025 

meeting packet, which was also found on the 

GHURA website, www.ghura.org.  

 

Chairman Rivera asked out of the total possible 

score of 140, if the SEMAP program scored 

140. Mrs. Alejandro confirmed this. The Board 

of Commissioners congratulated her on a job 

well done.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[579/25] Commissioner 

Torres moved to approve 

Resolution FY2026-002, 

Resolution Approving the 

Section Eight 

Management Assessment 

Program (SEMAP) 

Certification (Form HUD-

52648) for Fiscal Year 

Ending 2025 subject to 

corrections. 

Commissioner Rice 

seconded the motion. 

There were no 

objections. Motion 

passed unanimously.  

 

http://www.ghura.org/


 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2025                                                    Page 4 of 8 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

2. Resolution No. 
FY2026-003; 
Resolution Approving 
the Fiscal Year 2026 
Section Eight Housing 
Choice Voucher 
Program Utility 
Allowance Schedule 
and Additional 
Allowances for 
Reasonable 
Accommodations for 
Persons with 
Disabilities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[580/25] Executive Director Napoli read 

Resolution No. FY2026-003; Resolution 

Approving the Fiscal Year 2026 Section Eight 

Housing Choice Voucher Program Utility 

Allowance Schedule and Additional 

Allowances for Reasonable Accommodations 

for Persons with Disabilities and summarized 

the memorandum included on pages 13-20 in 

the GHURA Board of Commissioners (BoC) 

November 26, 2025 meeting packet, also 

found on the GHURA website, 

www.ghura.org. 

Commissioners asked clarifying questions 

about gas rates, fuel recovery charges, and 

allowances. 

Mrs. Alejandro explained that changes were 

driven by revised consumption formulas and 

verified rates from utility companies. She 

added that if changes within 10% take place in 

2026, she and her staff will revisit, re-evaluate, 

and work on updating the Utility Allowance 

Schedule. 

Chairman Rivera inquired about where table 

#6 on page 15 of 63 was taken from and 

further asked how GHURA can address the 

changing technology requirements that can 

make the standard of life better for the 

individuals that need the medical equipment.  

Mrs. Alejandro indicated that the chart was 

formulated years prior that was used year to 

year. In the event that a disabled person has a 

mobility device, additional allowance would be 

given to that person. She added that a doctor’s 

certification is required.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.ghura.org/


 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2025                                                    Page 5 of 8 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Commissioner Rice asked if there were units 

for persons with disabilities available 

throughout GHURA or if they were only at 

specific AMPs. Mrs. Alejandro indicated that 

some landlords have units that are ADA 

compliant and work closely with GHURA and 

the tenant to ensure the safety of the tenant.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[581/25] Vice Chairman 

Sanchez moved to 

approve Resolution 

FY2026-003. Resolution 

No. FY2026-003; 

Resolution Approving the 

Fiscal Year 2026 Section 

Eight Housing Choice 

Voucher Program Utility 

Allowance Schedule and 

Additional Allowances for 

Reasonable 

Accommodations for 

Persons with Disabilities 

Commissioner Torres 

seconded the motion. 

There were no 

objections. Motion 

passed unanimously. 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2025                                                    Page 6 of 8 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

3. Resolution No. 
FY2026-004; 
Resolution Approving 
Fiscal Year 2026 
Section Eight Housing 
Choice Voucher 
Program Payment 
Standards 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[582/25] Executive Director Napoli read 
Resolution No. FY2026-004; Resolution 
Approving Fiscal Year 2026 Section Eight 
Housing Choice Voucher Program Payment 
Standards and the payment standards 
analysis on pages 21-25 in the GHURA Board 
of Commissioners (BoC) November 26, 2025 
meeting packet, also found on the GHURA 
website, www.ghura.org. 

 

Commissioner Torres asked questions 

regarding market competitiveness and tenant 

impact. Mrs. Alejandro provided assurance 

that the rate is what GHURA uses to calculate 

its standard and is updated every year.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[583/25] Commissioner 

Rice moved to approve 

Resolution FY2026-004. 

Resolution Approving 

Fiscal Year 2026 Section 

Eight Housing Choice 

Voucher Program 

Payment Standards. Vice 

Chair Sanchez seconded 

the motion. There were 

no objections. Motion 

passed unanimously. 

http://www.ghura.org/


 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2025                                                    Page 7 of 8 
 

V. OLD BUSINESS 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. Summary of 
Executive Director, 
Board Evaluations 
for CY2025 

 
 
 
 
 

[584/25] Due to an unexpected scheduling 

conflict, the Executive Director requested to 

table this item for the next meeting. 

 

 

 

 

[585/25] Item approved 
to be carried over to the 
next meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

VI.  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

AGENDA ITAM 
 

DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. Project Updates [586/25] Due to an unexpected scheduling 

conflict, the Executive Director requested to 

table this item to the next meeting. 

 

[587/25] Item approved 
to be carried over to the 
next meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of November 26, 2025                                                    Page 8 of 8 
 

VII. GENERAL DISCUSSION/ANNOUNCEMENTS/ADJOURNMENT: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. Introduction of 
New Staff 
 

 

 

 

2. Next proposed 
scheduled Board 
Meeting 

 

 

 

3. ADJOURNMENT 

Mr. Eliseo Florig Jr., GHURA’s Legal Counsel, 

introduced Mrs. Brittney Quinata, newly hired 

Paralegal II under CDBG–DR. 

Commissioners welcomed her warmly and 

offered encouragement. 

 

Executive Director requested rescheduling the next 

meeting: 

• From: Tuesday, December 9, 2025 

• To: Thursday, December 11, 2025 at 12:00 

p.m. 

 

 

No Action Taken 

 

 

 

BOC Agreed 

 

 

 

[588/25] Vice Chairman 

Sanchez moved to 

adjourn the November 

26, 2025 GHURA BoC 

meeting. Commissioner 

Rice seconded. There 

were no objections. 

Motion passed. Meeting 

was adjourned at 

1:02PM.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SEAL 
             ______________________________ 
       Elizabeth F. Napoli 
       Board Secretary/Executive Director 
   
       Date __________________________ 

    







 
Board Meeting of December 11, 2025 

 
PAGE 1 of 16



 
Board Meeting of December 11, 2025 

 
PAGE 2 of 16



 
Board Meeting of December 11, 2025 

 
PAGE 3 of 16



 
Board Meeting of December 11, 2025 

 
PAGE 4 of 16



 
Board Meeting of December 11, 2025 

 
PAGE 5 of 16



 
Board Meeting of December 11, 2025 

 
PAGE 6 of 16



 
Board Meeting of December 11, 2025 

 
PAGE 7 of 16



 
Board Meeting of December 11, 2025 

 
PAGE 8 of 16



 
Board Meeting of December 11, 2025 

 
PAGE 9 of 16



 
Board Meeting of December 11, 2025 

 
PAGE 10 of 16



 
Board Meeting of December 11, 2025 

 
PAGE 11 of 16



 
Board Meeting of December 11, 2025 

 
PAGE 12 of 16



 
Board Meeting of December 11, 2025 

 
PAGE 13 of 16



 
Board Meeting of December 11, 2025 

 
PAGE 14 of 16



 
Board Meeting of December 11, 2025 

 
PAGE 15 of 16



 
Board Meeting of December 11, 2025 

 
PAGE 16 of 16




